
Merton Council
Licensing Sub-Committee
Membership
Councillors:
Stan Anderson
Nick Draper
Janice Howard

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on: 
Date: 29 November 2018 
Time:  3.00 pm
Venue:  Council chamber - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden 

SM4 5DX
Agenda for this meeting

1 Appointment of Chair 

2 Apologies for Absence 

3 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest 

4 37-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, CR4 2PF 1 - 40

Note on declarations of interest
Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter to be considered at the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they 
should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of 
that matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  members 
consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which 
may give rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, withdraw and not 
participate in consideration of the item.  For further advice please speak with the 
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.
This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and 
welcomed.  For more information about the agenda and the decision making 
process contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 
3616.
Press enquiries: communications@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3181
Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer
For more information about Merton Council visit www.merton.gov.uk

mailto:democratic.services@merton,gov.uk
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk
http://www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer
http://www.merton.gov.uk/


Procedure to be followed at Licensing Hearing

1. The Chair will welcome all parties and all present will be introduced/introduce 
themselves

2. The Chair will confirm the sub-committee hearing procedures, a copy of which 
was included in the notice and agenda packs sent to all parties.

3. The Chair will ask the Legal Adviser to inform those present that the sub-
committee had a briefing prior to the hearing to confirm the procedure and for 
clarification on any aspect of the application.

4. The Chair will ask Legal Adviser to confirm the process for questioning and 
whether there had been any requests for adjournments.

5. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officer if there are any technical issues they feel 
should be brought to their attention i.e. withdrawal of objector/agreed conditions
(Note: If all objections are withdrawn then the Sub-Committee may go straight to 
point 14. 
If all conditions are agreed by all parties then the Sub-Committee may go straight to 
point 14)

6. The Applicant will present their case.  Questions can then be asked of the 
Applicant by the Responsible Authorities, the interested parties and members of 
the Sub-Committee.

7. The Responsible Authorities will present their case.  Questions can then be 
asked of the Responsible Authorities by  the Applicant, the interested parties, and 
members of the Sub-Committee.

8. Presentation by any interested party.  Questions can then be asked of the 
interested party by the Applicants, the Responsible Authorities and members of 
the Sub-Committee.

9. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officer for any comments/ clarifications

10. The Chair will ask the Legal Adviser for any comments/clarifications

11. The Chair will invite closing statements by the responsible authorities

12. The Chair will invite closing statements by the interested parties

13. The Chair will invite closing statements by the Applicant

14. The Chair will announce that the Sub-Committee are retiring for private session. 
The Legal Officer and Clerk will be invited to also retire.

15. In closed session the Sub-Committee will make their decision.  They may ask the 
Legal Officer for advice during this session.

16. The Sub Committee will return and re-open for public session.

17. The Chair will invite the Legal Officer to present the advice provided during 
private session.

18. The Sub-committee’s decision will be read out either by the Chair or the Chair will 
invite the Legal Officer to do so.

19. The Chair will inform those present that all parties should receive a written copy 
of the decision notice within 5 working days, and then close the Hearing





This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee Report 

Subject of hearing: 37-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, CR4 2PF
Date: 29 November
Time: 15:00
Venue:  Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden, Surrey, SM4 5DX
1. Special Policy Area (premises licences and club certificates)
1.1 The premises are in the special policy area. Accordingly the relevant section 

of Merton’s Licensing Policy is particularly relevant to this application though 
the sub-committee is to have regard to the policy as a whole.

2. Type of hearing and powers of the sub-committee
2.1 The sub-committee is required to determine the application by taking such of 

the steps set out below as it considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

2.2 In making their determination the sub-committee must have regard to the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing objectives, guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State and Merton’s Licensing Policy.

2.3 New premises licence: s18
(i) To grant the licence subject to conditions
(ii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 

activities to which the application relates
(iii) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor
(iv) To reject the application.

3. Hearing papers
3.1 The applications, notices and representations for determination by the sub-

committee are contained in the hearing bundles together with any relevant 
existing licence.  This includes any documents which must be sent to any of 
the parties to the hearing under Regulation 7(2) and Schedule 3 of The 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  This bundle has been 
issued to all parties to the hearing.

4. Legal advice to the sub-committee
4.1 A legal officer appointed by the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance  

and Head  of Legal Services will attend the hearing to advise the sub-
committee on statutory provision and legal matters.

5. Licensing Officer Comments
5.1 This is an application for a new premises licence.
5.2 The application is for the sale of retail by alcohol for consumption off the 

premises as follows: Sun to Thurs – 07:00 to 01:00
                                  Sat & Sun – 07:00 to 02:00

5.3 Six representations have been received.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



5.4 The application seeks for the premises to be open for 24 hours, seven days 
per week.

For enquiries about this hearing please contact 
Democratic Services
Civic Centre
London Road
Morden
SM4 5DX

Telephone: 020 8545 3616
Email: democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

Parties to the hearing
This document forms part of the notice of hearing.
The following are parties to the hearing having submitted relevant applications, notices 
or representations under the statutory provisions indicated:

Applicant
Jyothis Joseph

Statutory Authorities
Metropolitan Police
LB Merton Public Health 

Interested Parties
Councillor Geraldine Stanford Liz Collinson
Mick & Jenny Beasley Sue Cooper

Page 2

mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk


Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



From: Compliance Direct <office@compliancedirectltd.com> 
Sent: 15 October 2018 15:38
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@merton.gov.uk>
Subject: 37-39 Upper Green East, CR4 2PF
Importance: High

Dear Sirs,

Further to our application, please see additional proposed conditions to address the cumulative 
impact, in addition to the ones already offered in the application.

An incident book shall be kept and maintained at the premises, which shall be made 

available to a police officer or an authorised officer of any responsible authority upon 

request. The incident book shall be used to record the date and time of any incident, the 

name of the staff member and a brief description of the customer concerned

All incidences of the following shall be recorded in the incident book within 24 hours and 

retained for a minimum of 12 months:

1 Any attempted underage alcohol purchase

2 Any theft or attempted theft of alcoholic drinks

3 Any acts of violence or criminal damage

4 Any other incidents involving crime or disorder

Installed CCTV systems that meet the standard to be approved in writing by the Chief 

Community Safety Officer shall operate and record video images at all times that the 

premises are open to the public. All CCTV shall be kept for not less than 31 days and be 

made available to a police officer or an authorised officer of any responsible authority on 

request. A member of staff capable of operating the CCTV will be present during the opening 

hours of the premises. 

All alcohol that is displayed for sale shall be located within view of the cashier, and all spirits 

shall be stored behind the serving point to reduce the possibility of a snatch theft. The area 

designated is outside the normal area where groceries are stocked.

All reasonable steps shall be taken to verify that any documents produced by persons 

attempting to purchase alcohol are genuine and relate to the person producing them.

Age verification is a mandatory scheme.

The premises licence holder shall operate a "Challenge 25" scheme at the premises 

whereby anyone who appears to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide proof of age that 

Page 19



he or she is over 18.  Proof of age shall only comprise of a passport, a photo card driving 

licence or an industry approved proof of age identity card. 

Suitable signage shall be displayed at the point of entry and at the service area advising 

customers that the premises operates the “Challenge 25” proof of age scheme.

Suitable signage to be displayed requesting patrons to adhere to the following:

A prominent notice shall be displayed requesting that patrons leave quietly and respect the 

local area and residents.

Lagers beers and ciders above 6.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) shall not be offered for sale or 

sold from the premises. 

No alcohol to be consumed on the premises. Off sales only

Outside of the hours unauthorized for the sale of alcohol, all alcohol within the trading area is 

to be secured behind locked grills, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent 

access to the alcohol by both customers or staff.

Premises shall install and maintain a till prompt system to prompt the seller to check age and 

ask for ID whenever an age restricted product is made.

Shankar P Sivashankar BSc (MIOL)

Page 20



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

A

B

C

D

E

F

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

A

B

C

D

E

F

CO
M

PL
IA

NC
E 

DI
RE

CT
 L

TD
LI

CE
NS

IN
G 

PL
AN

DESIGNER

CLIENT

PROJECT MANAGER

DRAWING MODEL

Drawing Scale

Reg.Nr.

revision

date

PROJECTSUBJECT

LICENSING PLAN 37-39 UPPER GREEN EAST SURREY CR4 2PF

1:100

37/CDL/LA18

1

15/10/2018

        

2,010
2,100

2,100
800

2,100
800

2,100
800

80
0

2,
10

0

2,100
1,188

GROUND FLOOR
Drawing scale 1:100

2,100
800

2,100
800

STEP

2,100
800

ALCOHOL 
ONLY

ALCOHOL 
ONLY

COUNTER

SPIRITS

STORE

WC

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Re: Application for a Premises License under the Licensing Act 2003-
Convenience store, 37-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, London, CR4 2PF  
 

License Number  WK/201807603 

License Type Off license  

Ward Figges Marsh  

 
 
 

As a responsible authority under the 2012 amendment to the Licensing Act 2003, the Director of Public 
Health for Merton wishes to submit a representation for this premises license application, on the four 
licensing objectives namely: 

 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. Public Safety 
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4. The Protection of Children from Harm 

 

The applicant is seeking to sell alcohol (off the premises) from 07:00 to 01:00 Monday to Thursday, 
07:00 to 02:00 Friday to Saturday and 07:00 to 01:00 Sunday. Public Health is seriously concerned 
about this application to sell alcohol off the premises for the following reasons:  

 

 The premises is located within a Cumulative Impact Zone, an area which has been 

identified by the Council as presenting serious issues regarding crime and anti-social 

behavior from street drinkers. 

 The applicant is seeking to sell alcohol from very early in the morning into the early hours 

of the following day which will have negative impacts on the public’s health and on the 

potentially positive effects that the surrounding neighbourhood can have on people’s 

wellbeing and health.   

COMMUNITY AND HOUSING DEPARTMENT 
Department of Public Health 

Public Health 
London Borough of Merton 
Merton Civic Centre 
London Road 
Morden SM4 5DX 
 
Direct Line: 020 8545 4577 
Email: Natalie.lovell@merton.gov.uk 

 
Date:  12/11/2018 
 

To: Licensing Department 
London Borough of Merton 
Merton Civic Centre 
London Road 

Morden SM4 5DX 

Page 27



2 
 

 Public health data shows areas for concern within the premises postal code 

 

Introduction and Background  

 

Tackling alcohol misuse is central to achieving the outcomes in Merton’s Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  Merton’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy is currently being refreshed and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board have agreed four overarching themes of: Start Well; Live Well; Age Well; in a Healthy 
Place. The Healthy Place theme is an integral part of the first three themes, and the aim is to focus on 
what a healthy place looks like that will help individuals and communities in Merton to flourish and live 
healthy lives.  

A crucial element of tackling alcohol-related harm is ensuring that health and wellbeing considerations 
are met by premises licensed to sell alcohol within the borough, in order to prevent alcohol-related 
crime and anti-social behaviour, ensure public safety, and prevent harm to children. 

Alcohol misuse is currently one of the biggest Public Health issues in the U.K., and it imposes a huge 
burden on our society. 

 

 

Irresponsible drinking costs the taxpayer a staggering £21 billion a year.1 
 

 

Alcohol is currently the biggest risk factor for death, ill-health, and disability 
among 15-49 year olds in the UK.2 

 
 

 

The cost of alcohol-related conditions to the NHS is £3.5 billion annually.3 

 

 

   Alcohol is a contributing factor in 75% of stabbings, and 60-70% of murders.4 

                                            
1
 Home Office, 2012. 

2
 .  Strang, J., Drummond, C., McNeill, A. et al (2014) Addictions, dependence and substance misuse 

In: Davies, S Annual Report of the Chief Medical Officer 2013: Public Mental Health priorities: 
investing in the evidence. 
3
 https://www.alcoholconcern.org.uk/alcohol-statistics. Accessed April 2018 

4
 British Medical Association (BMA) 

Page 28

https://www.alcoholconcern.org.uk/alcohol-statistics


3 
 

Evidence of detrimental impact on the licensing objectives 

 

1. The prevention of crime and disorder 

 

The link between alcohol and violence has been recognized as far back as the 4th century BC. 
Alcohol-related violence causes substantial injury and death.5 

 

Local data suggests there is a serious issue with crime and violence in the area surrounding the 
premises postcode. 

 

Within 100m of the premises postcode, CR4 2 PF 

 Bus driver reported violence falls in the top 5% of the borough  

 Bus driver reported anti-social behaviour falls in the top 20% of the borough 

 Gun, knife and weapon injuries fall in the top 30% of the borough 

 Head injuries fall in the top 30% of the borough 

 Ambulance recorded assaults fall in the top 40% of the borough 

 

Issues with crime and violence continue to occur in the wider area surrounding the premises postcode 
CR4 2PF. For example, between 200m and 300m of the postcode 

 

 Bus driver reported anti-social behaviour falls in the top 5% of the borough 

 Bus driver reported violence falls in the top 5% of the borough  

 Alcohol related incidents fall in the top 20% of the borough  

 Gun, knife and weapon injuries fall in the top 30% of the borough 

 

The above data suggests there is a significant impact of alcohol consumption in the local area. While 
the above data does not relate to the specific premise, any premises that supplies alcohol in the area 
will be contributing to the trends relating alcohol to crime and disorder. 

 

2. Public safety  

 

There is evidence of serious neighbourhood issues in the area in which the applicant 
is seeking a premises license; residents living in this area are significantly more likely 
to report noisy neighbours, loud parties, people using or dealing drugs and groups 
hanging out in the streets.  

 

 The recent  Annual Residents Survey for Merton (2017) highlights that 17% of residents in this 
area of the borough are very worried or fairly worried about people being drunk and rowdy in 
public places. 23% are very concerned or fairly concerned about groups hanging around in the 

                                            
5
 https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3170096/#R2  

Page 29

https://www2.merton.gov.uk/residents_survey_research_report_2017.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3170096/#R2


4 
 

streets, and 15% of residents are very concerned or fairly concerned about people using or 
dealing drugs. 6  

 The recent Annual Residents Survey for Merton (2017) also highlights that crime is the second 
highest issue (after gangs) that young people in Merton are personally most concerned about, 
with almost a quarter (24%)of young people citing it as an issue.  

 Within the borough, there is an element of variance in the degree of alcohol harm 
between different wards. Figges Marsh, where this premises is located, has a higher 
admission ratio of hospital stays for alcohol-related harm than the figure for 
Merton and that for London.7 
 

 The crime rate in Figges Marsh is 95 offences per 1,000 population in 2017. This is higher than 
the Merton value, which is 65 offences per 1,000 population.8 The highest number of offences 
recorded is ‘violence against the person’.  

 

3. Prevention of public nuisance 
 

 The premises in concern are located in the Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) of Mitcham Town 
Centre; an area where it is recognised that there is a problem with the impact of alcohol on 
public nuisance, particularly with regard to street drinking.  

 
 

4. The protection of children from harm  

 

The creation of healthy places is crucial to ensuring future generations have the best 
possible chance at a healthy future. This is not only essential for individual wellbeing, but 
also for society as a whole. A healthy place means an environment that makes the healthy 
choice the easy choice (for example, limiting fast food outlets and sales of alcohol near 
schools and public spaces), and that protects children from being exposed to antisocial 
behaviour and crime on their streets.   

 

 The premises postcode, CR4 2PF, is within walking distance of at least two schools, 
including St Mark’s Primary School and St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic Primary 
School, and is likely to be on the route to and from school for children.  
 

 The premises postcode, CR4 2PF is a short 5 minute walk (0.2 miles) from Mitcham 
Common, a large public open space frequented by children, young people and older 
people. 
 

 The population of Figges Marsh is different to other wards in Merton in that there are 
a higher proportion of young people (0-29 years) living in the area. 

 
 

                                            
6
 https://www2.merton.gov.uk/residents_survey_research_report_2017.pdf  

7
 https://www2.merton.gov.uk/figges_marsh_ward_health_profile.pdf  

8
 https://www2.merton.gov.uk/figges_marsh_ward_health_profile.pdf  

Page 30

https://www2.merton.gov.uk/residents_survey_research_report_2017.pdf
https://www2.merton.gov.uk/figges_marsh_ward_health_profile.pdf
https://www2.merton.gov.uk/figges_marsh_ward_health_profile.pdf


5 
 

Conclusion 

There is strong evidence revealing serious concerns about alcohol harm in the local 
population, and the location of the premises in concern is that which serves potentially 
vulnerable individuals. Therefore, we request that the application for a premises license 
WK/201807603 be rejected.  

 

Yours Sincerely,  

Natalie Lovell  

 

Signed electronically 

Natalie Lovell  

Healthy Places Officer 

On behalf of Dr Dagmar Zeuner, Director of Public Health 

 

 

  

Page 31



6 
 

APPENDIX 
 

 

 
 
All Infographics on page 2 from Noun Project artists, accessed at 
https://thenounproject.com/ 
Credits: 
£ icon by Chameleon Design 
Heart icon by Ben Davis 
Criminal icon by Bakunetsu Kaito 
Ambulance icon by dDara 
 

Select Street Select Postcode

Colours Indicate high volume of selected incidents or venues

Top 1% Top 30%
Top 5% Top 40%

Top 20% Top 50%

eg. A Top 1% rank is given to any of the distance bands

that contain more than 3 Gun, Knife and Weapon Injuries*

Ambulance Recorded Assaults Gun, Knife and Weapon Injuries

Head Injuries Least Serious Injuries

Alcohol Related Alcohol Related (Aged Under 26)

Bus Driver Reported ASB Bus Driver Reported Violence

BTP ASB BTP Violence

BTP Criminal Damage

Selected Location

100 metres from selected location

200 metres from selected location

300 metres from selected location

400 metres from selected location

500 metres from selected location

D
at

a 
fr

o
m

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
0

1
6

-A
u

gu
st

 2
0

1
7

Page 32

https://thenounproject.com/


From: Councillor Geraldine Stanford 
Sent: 17 October 2018 07:39
To: Licensing
Cc: Russ Stevens
Subject: RE: Premises/Club and Gambling Licensing Applications

Dear Licensing,

Wish to object to WK/201807603 – 37/39 Upper Green East, Mitcham.  On the 
grounds that it is within the Mitcham CIZ, and will exacerbate the problems we have 
in the area with antisocial behaviour related to street drinking.

Morning Russ – they don’t seem to be getting the message around the Fair Green, 
that we just don’t need or want any more alcohol outlets around there!  This one 
seems to want 24/7 opening hours and selling alcohol till 1/2am – hope you will 
support refusal.

All the best,
Geraldine 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Section
London Borough of Merton
14*'' Floor
Civic Centre
London Road
Morden
Surrey SM4 5DX 

23^'* October 2018 

Dear Sir
Re: Licensing Application 37 - 39 Upper Green East

I am writing to oppose the above licensing application and the ridiculous hours they have applied 
for.
Mitcham has become a no go area. The area by the Clock Tower, the seats around the pond, in the 
corner of the Canons Park, around the pond in the Canons Park and any other dark corners they can 
find have become regular haunts for drinkers with their drink hidden in carrier bags. It is no longer 
safe for the general public to walk through these areas. There are already enough shops that sell 
alcohol.
Hoping you will consider all comments favourably.

Mick & Jenny Beasley

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



25 Oct 18

Licensing Service, London Borough of Merton 
14th Floor Civic Centre 
London Road, Morden, Surrey 
SM4 5DX

Dear Sir

Re: License appiication WK/201807603

I am amongst others writing to oppose this license application from the business operating from 37-39 
Upper Green East (previously 'Costcutter', now known as 'Ronnies Cutter')

Over recent years the area around Three Kings Pond has been plagued by drinkers at all times of day and 
night. It has become increasingly noisy, dirty and littered and there has been open use of the pond and 
surrounding area as a urinal. Local residents have suffered from disturbed sleep, noise, stress, and other 
issues including aggressive and occasionally violent behaviour from street drinkers in the area.

However, since the business operating at 37-39 Upper Green East had its alcohol license revoked, and the 
supply of alcohol has been less accessible, the drink-fuelled problems around the pond have declined to a 
massive extent. The improvement has been little short of stunning, and it coincides with this reduction in 
the supply of alcohol in the area. Local residents dread the resumption of convenient availability of alcohol 
as proposed in this application, and an inevitable return of the alcohol-fuelled anti-social behaviour which 
has previously taken place.

The proposed licensing hours on the application speak for themselves. From 7am each morning until either 
lam (weekdays) or 2am (Friday and Saturday) at night, giving a period of 17 or 18 hours every day for 
selling alcohol, and obviously ensuring they are readily available to service the night time market.

A previous application from another local store for an alcohol license - again clearly aimed at exploiting the 
local drinking culture, vvas rejected due to the on-going drinking problems at the pond and town centre. I 
would like to hope Merton can again consider the wishes of the residents for peaceful surroundings and 
reject the application.

Given that the local Police Licensing Officer has requested that Merton issue no further alcohol licenses in 
the area, due to the prevalence and behaviour of drinkers in the town centre (which has rendered the area 
'toxic' according to our local MP), I would again hope that this advice would encourage Merton to reject 
this application.

Yours sincerely ' ; , • '

Sue Cooper Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 37-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, CR4 2PF
	Application
	Additional Conditions offered
	Licensing Plan
	Representation 1 - Metropolitan Police
	Representation 2 - Public Health
	Representation 3 - Councillor Stanford
	Representation 4 - Beasley
	Representation 5 - Collinson
	Representation 6 - Cooper


